T S - V. T S > R o B e

[\)»—-b-—t)-—dy—au-—lv-t)—-dn—at—dn—a
BRI ERREBIYVES S o3 a & 2 6 0 = o

CERTI
— FILED _____ ENTERED | W STk, %BBRUOE RI(F)'KUVOPY
— LODGED ___RecEwED °Stern Ditmey LISt Copny

APR 5 2010

AT SEATTLE
CLERK U_S. DISTRICT O
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DEPUTY

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

AT SEATTLE i
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, -
Plaintiff. CASE NO. N 3’ /0 / 'r;—
V. FELONY COMPLAINT
CHARLES ALAN WILSON,
Defendant.

BEFORE, James P. Donohue, United States Magistrate Judge, Seattle, Washington.

The undersigned complainant, being duly sworn, alleges:
COUNT 1
(Threatening a Federal Official)

Beginning on or about March 22, 2010, and continuing until on or about

April 4, 2010, within the Western District of Washington and elsewhere, the defendant,
CHARLES ALAN WILSON, threatened to assault and murder a United States official,

namely, United States Senator Patricia L. Murray, with the intent to impede, intimidate,

and interfere with such official while engaged in the performance of official duties, and

with the intent to retaliate against such official on account of the performance of official

duties.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 115(a)(1)(B) and (b)(4).
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AFFIANT’S TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE

I, Carolyn W. Woodbury, am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, and have been so employed since September 1997. I am currently assigned
to the violent crime/organized crime squad in the Seattle, Washington office. As an FBI
Special Agent, I have investigated a variety of violent crimes, including cases involving
threats of violence, and I have investigated criminal orgarﬁzations involved in, among
other things, illegal gambling, loansharking, and narcotics trafficking. Prior to my
employment with the FBI, I was employed as a Probation Officer in the Los Angeles
County Probation Department for approximately eight years. I have earned a Bachelor of
Arts degree from The Masters College and a Masters Degree in Criminal Justice from
California State Long Beach University.

The facts in this Complaint consist of information I gathered and observed first-
hand through the course of this investigation, as well as information related to me orally
by other law enforcement personnel and through interviews of witnesses, and finally
information obtained from reviewing reports written by other investigators working with
me on this case. The information set forth in this affidavit is not intended to detail each
and every fact and circumstance of the investigation or all information known to me or
the investigative participants. Rather, this affidavit serves to establish that probable cause
exists to believe that CHARLES ALAN WILSON committed the crime of Threatening a
Federal Official, as alleged above.

PROBABLE CAUSE EVIDENCE OF THE CRIMINAL OFFENSE

A.  Introduction.

On March 24, 2010, the Seattle Division of the FBI was contacted by M.G., a staff
member for United State Senator Patty Murray. M.G. reported that over the past several
months, an unknown male has been calling Senator Murray’s office' on numerous

occasions, often leaving voicemail messages directed at Senator Murray. According to

! Senator Murray’s office is located in the Jackson Federal Building at 915 2nd Avenue,
Seattle, Washington.

U.S. Attorney’s Office
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M.G., the caller has been blocking his telephone number every time he calls, and he often
calls after work hours, early in the morning, or on weekends. M.G. reported that until
recently, the voicemail messages were merely harassing in nature. The caller often used
vulgar and offensive language, but he did not make overt threats against Senator Murray.
However, beginning on or about March 22, 2010, the caller began to make overt threats to
kill and/or injure Senator Murray, as well as to have her killed and/or injured. As
described below, through subsequent investigation the caller has been positively
identified as the defendant, CHARLES ALAN WILSON.

The timing of the threats coincided with the recent passage of the health-care
reform legislation. Specifically, it is a matter of public record that on March 21, 2010, the
health-care reform bill was approved by the United States Congress. The President of the
United States signed the bill into law on March 23, 2010. As detailed below, WILSON
began leaving threatening voicemail messages for Senator Murray on March 22, 2010.
During many of the voicemails, WILSON expressed his strong disapproval for the health-
care reform legislation, and the fact that Senator Murray voted in support of the bill.

B. The Recorded Voicemail Messages Left by WILSON.

Beginning on March 22, 2010, M.G. began to record and save WILSON’s
voicemail messages. During the morning of March 22, 2010, WILSON made the
following statements over a series of voicemail messages left at Senator Murray’s office:

I hope you realize, there’s a target on }'our back now. There are many

people out there that want you dead. Just remember that as you are

oliticing for your reelection. It only takes one dpiece of lead. . .. Kill the
cking senator! Kill the fucking senator! I'll donate the lead. ... Now

that you’ve passed your health-care bill, let the violence begin. Let the

violence begin. There’s people gonna get hurt over this son of a bitch. We,

the people, will not subside, succumb to socialism. Let the violence begin.

You will find out and you will actually really pay. You have awakened a

sleeping giant. The American tEeople will not put up with it. We are not a

country of cowards, as one of the high ranking people of this administration

says. You’ll find out how fucking cowardly we really are, my dear. Better

p get under your desk, get on your (unintelligible).

I
/I
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On March 23, 2010, at 10:19 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

With the passing of your health-care bill, it is living proof now that . . .

This great country that believes in God and guns. Since you’ve done this,

there’s going to be some bigger targets on your fucking back. . . . Thope

somebody kills you, and I hope somebody kills [the President]. Yes, die,

gea(}il. You’re signing my death warrant, so I want to sign yours, fucking
itch.

On March 23, 2010, at 10:23 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

As you grow older, you are going to have a target on your back forever, for
voting in socialism into this country with your health-care bill and your cap
’ntax. Your gonna have a target on your back for the rest of your life.
How long do you think you can hide? Yes, for the rest of your life. And
there is §oing to be — it could be a senior citizen, could be an veteran, could
be a mad momma, an upset momma. By your attempts to overtake this
country with socialism, somebody’s gonna get to you one way or another
and blow your fucking brains out, and I hOﬁe it does happen. If I have the
chance, [ would do it. You have created a hatred in this country against
socialism, and you low-life backstabbing llying, cheating, politicians are
going to be held accountable. And hopefu ly it is with your life. 1 hope it’s

- with your life. Ihope somebody takes your fucking fat ass fucking out, I

really do. And it’s just my belief. I’m not a tea party bagger. I'm an
independent U.S. voter. I'm neither Republican nor Democrat. I hope you
fucking die. I want to fucking kill you. I hope somebody fucking hangs
you, blows your fucking brains out. We will not be socialized, you fucking
cunt. Get it through your fucking head. You have — You are a marked
person for the rest of your fucking life, you fucking slut.

On March 23, 2010, at 10:28 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

Kill the fucking Senator! Hang the fucking Senator! I hope somebody puts
a fucking bullet between your fucking eyes. Far left liberal socialist
democratic bitch. - You mother-fucker. You sold the fucking people of the
country out for socialism. I hope somebody fucking erasers your fucking
life. Yes, I hope somebody assassinates you, you fucking bitch.

Also on March 23, 2010, WILSON made the following statements over the course

of several additional voicemail messages left at Senator Murray’s office:

In watching how this government works, this is not a striking and what
you’re doing to this country, I surely hope somebody puts a fucking bullet
through your fucking brain. Ihope they blow your fucking brain all over
the fucking wall. Yes, I hope somebody assassinates you. I wish somebody
would kill you. . .. I wish somebody would blow your ass off the face of
the fucking earth. Yes, assassinate you. I.wish somebody would blow your
fucking brains out. . . . Not only do I say, “Kill the bill!” I say: Kill the

U.S. Attorney’s Office
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fucking Senator! Hang the fucking bitch! Hang that mother-fucking bitch
from a fucking gallows! Kill the bill, kill the Senator too.

* ok ok K %

I do believe that every one of you mother-fucking socialist democratic
¥rogressive mother-fuckers need to be taken out. Put in front of a fucking

iring squad and shot between the fucking eyes. Assassinated, you fucking
low-life. There is a growing hatred, my dear, for you progressive socialist
democrats. Socialism will not work. There is a growing hatred. And guess
who caused it? You, you! My hatred is coming from you, you fucking slut.
Since you are going to put my life at risk, and some bureaucrat is going to
determine my health-care, your life is at risk, dear. Yes, your life 1s at risk.
There are a lot more of us.” There are a lot of crazy people out there, and
your security may stay with %;)u for a long time, but somebody will get
through. You never know. Your life is in danger, since you’re putting my
life in danger. Turn about’s fair play.

On March 23, 2010, at 5:07 p.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

Fuck 1y1§)u socialists up the ass. You’re dead fucking meat, Murray! You’re
dead fucking meat! Baby killer, Murray. I hope somebody gets throu

your security and blows your fucking brains out, you fucking baby killing
fuckin%lbitch. Yeah, you fucking sgmeless, fucking whore. You Pike
Street fucking whore. I hope somebody gets throu%h your security and
blows your fucking brains out, you fucking baby killer. Blows your fucking
brains out. We will not be socialized, you fucking cunt. Get it through your
fucking head. You have — You are a marked person for the rest of your
fucking life, you fucking slut.

On March 24, 2010, at 8:09 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message
for Senator Murray:

Senator, you just got done fucking the geople of this State, the senior
citizens of this country and most ever%vody else, to satisfi your ideological
ideas. We are going to fuck you uﬁ. e are going to fuck you up as bad as
we can. Yes, the independents. The real people of this country, not you
spineless fucking socialists. You better watch your fucking back, baby,
because there’s people gonna come after you with fucking both fucking
barrels, bitch. You fucking Pike Street whore.

On March 24, 2010, 8:11 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message for

Senator Murray:

Somebody is eventuallg' gonna get through your security and put a fucking
%Sm to your head, and opefully I will be able to watch somebody blow your
cking brains out. You’re so fucking i%norant. I would actually pay to
help that person, you fucking sleeze-ball fucking cunt. You are ruining this
country. You have awakened a sleeping giant and we are coming after you.
Yes, we the people. As you trash our Constitution, you tried to lead us mnto

a socialistic nation, we’re gonna fuck you up. We’re gonna fuck you up so

U.S. Attorney’s Office
X X 700 Stewart Street, Suite 5220
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fucking bad, you’re gonna be fucking. . . . I hope somebody gets through
your security and blows your fucking brains out. Yes, I truly, really, with
all my heart, hopefully somebody does that.

On March 24, 2010, at 10:24 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message
for Senator Murray:

The old sayin% goes, my dear, all’s fair in love and war. This is war, S0
everything is fair. Cover your back. You better have eyes in the back of
your head. Cover your back, all’s fair in love and war. Nobody comes out
a winner. You may think you're a winner now. You’re gonna be the
biggest fucking loser. You have a horrendous amount of people that dislike
you and your policies, and since we are, you have declared war on the
American citizens, and we are declaring war upon you. Watch your back.

On March 26, 2010, at 4:34 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message
for Senator Murray:

Now that you have finally screwed the people of this State and helped screw
the people of this country, I hope that you are very, very proud of ourself.
You’ll go down in the annals of time as one of the most fantastic Pike Street
whores that Washington has ever had. I want to thank you so much for
ruining my life and yes, for killing babies. Voting on a bill that kills babies,
you ought to be very, very proud of yourself. That’s what you should run
on from this Fall as you run around town in your sneaker shoes. Yes, uh,
it’s not that I hate you. I’ve never met you. But your policies and your .
ideals suck. Yes. In your dying days, I hope it turns around and bites you
in the fucking ass so fucking hard, you fucking cunt.

On March 27, 2010, at 9:27 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message
for Senator Murray:

. .. Thope we shove this health-care bill so far down your throat. You
shoved 1t down our throat, we’re gonna shove it up your ass. Yes, we’re
onna shove it right up your ass. We’re gonna take your ass out of office.
at way, you cannot harm us any more. Maybe I will not have to go to the
end-of-life classes that you have planned for me. Maybe you should go to
the end-of-life classes that you have planned for us. gecause ou’re gonna
be there some day, too, yourself. So you better study up, my dear.

On March 27, 2010, at 6:10 p.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

Yes, Patty, I hope you choke on your health-care bill. We’re choking on it.
Yes, me are a senior citizen on social security and medicare. I want to
thank you so much, very very much, for signing my death warrant. You,
you have given me so much 1n your career, I don’t know how to thank you.
Oh, gee, thank you so much. I, 1 just love this new health-care bill. I'm
glad 1 finally got to state that I need to go pass away when I have out-lived
my usefulness to you. Yes, that makes me so lad. At least I know that I

will be taken care of, you know, in the after-life. . . . It’s sad to say, but uh,

U.S. Attorney's Office
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we won’t go down without a fight. A big fight, and it can hurt people.
You’re already hurting me, so when I'm hurt, I want to hurt back. And I
think that turn-about’s fair play. . . . Thank you so much for signing my
death warrant. Too bad it’s not yours.

On March 29, 2010, at 5:04 a.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message

for Senator Murray:

Senator . . . Fuck you. You are fired. You are 86’ed. Fuck you, you Pike
Street fucking whore. You fucking slut. Come over to Yakima and list—
Come on down to Grandview and get some more spit dick there, you old
fucking cunt.

On March 30, 2010, at 5:25 p.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message
for Senator Murray: “Fuck you liberals. We’re gonna take you out, Murray. We’re gonna

take you out. Fuck you, God damn liberals.”
On April 4, 2010, at 8:00 p.m., WILSON left the following voicemail message for

Senator Murray:

Oh, you were in Yakima last week.” How come you didn’t give a big
speech to the people outside Waltil‘l% to see you? Yeah, we were outside
waiting for you, hopefully you would come out and explain to us how come
this health-care bill that you railed on so highly is going to create the
biggest drain in American history. It’s goinﬁ to cause so much pain and
su%%ering. I would like to thank you so much, for robbing from me and
Futting on my children’s plate the most ridiculous, underhanded, back-door

ing, cheating, unconstitutional. You are fantastic. I want to thank you for

e pain and sufferin%ll am having. Fuck you, you fucking slut, you fuckin
cunt. I wish you the fucking pain I am going through. I wish it upon you.
hope you had the worst fucking Easter of you entire fucking life. We are
coming after t%'ou, bitch, taking you out of fucking office. We are going to
remove you from doing any more damage to the people that you are
supposed to represent, not rule. Fuck you cunt, you fucking Pike Street
fucking slut.

C.  The Identification of WILSON as the Caller.

I have listened to the above referenced voicemail recordings. The caller on each of
the voicemail messages has a distinctive voice, and it is clear that the same caller left each
of the messages. In an effort to identify the caller, I obtained and reviewed telephone
records for Senator Murray’s office. The office is assigned the toll-free telephone

number (866) 481-9186. This line is operated by Verizon Business. I requested and

* T was informed by Senator Murray’s staff that on Af}pril 1, 2010, Senator Murray was in
Yakima speaking at an event at the Yakima Chamber of Commerce.

U.S. Attorney’s Office
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received Verizon Business records pertaining to all incoming calls to Senator Murray’s
office number for a three day period, from March 25-27, 2010.> During this period, the
subject of the investigation called Senator Murray’s office and left voicemail messages on
seven occasions: on March 25, 2010, at 3:04 p.m, 6:44 p.m., and 10:45 p.m.; on March
26, 2010, at 4:34 a.m. and 5:55 p-m.; and on March 27, 2010, at 9:27 a.m. and 6:10 p.m.
The Verizon Business records indicate that phone number (509) 697-6970 placed each of
the calls to Senator Murray’s office, with the exception of the call on March 25, 2010, at
10:45 p.m., which did not appear in the records.‘

Telephone number (509) 697-6970 is a publically listed hard line telephone
number, subscribed to by the defendant, CHARLES ALAN WILSON, at 804 W. Barlett
Avenue, Selah, Washington. According to the records of the Washington State
Department of Licensing, WILSON has a Washington State driver’s license registered to
him at the above address.

On April 1, 2010, for the purpose of further confirming that the caller on the
voicemails was, in fact, WILSON, FBI Special Agent Cory Cote (“S/A Cote”) placed an
undercover phone call to (509) 697-6970. During the call, S/A Cote disguised himself as
a representative of “Patients United Now,” a group that was ostensibly attempting to have
the federal health-care reform legislation repealed. The call lasted approximately
fourteen minutes, and it was consensually recorded by S/A Cote.

~ When S/A Cote dialed (509) 697;6970, a male answered the phone. S/A Cote
stated that he represented Patients United Now, and asked for “Mr. Wilson.” The male
confirmed that he was WILSON. Both S/A Cote and myself have reviewed the recording
of this conversation, and both of us have concludéd that WILSON’s voice, as heard
during the call with S/A Cote, is the same voice heard on each of the above referenced
voicemails left at Senator Murray’s office. Based on this voice identification, I believe

that WILSON is the person who left the voicemail messages at Senator Murray’s office.

* 1 also have requested, and am still waiting to obtain, records relating to all of WILSON’s
outgoing phone calls since January 1, 2010.

U.S. Attorney’s Office
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Moreover, during the conversation with S/A Cote, WILSON made several
statements that further confirm he was the caller on the voicemail messages, including:
(a) WILSON repeatedly expressed his strong dislike for the recent health-care reform
legislation (i.e., “I hate it. I hate it!”); (b) WILSON confirmed that he regularly placed
calls to Senator Murray’s and Senator Maria Cantwell’s offices (i.e., “I call Murray every
day. I call Cantwell. They don’t like hearing from me. . .. I call them everyday.”);

(c) WILSON referred to Senators Murray and Cantwell as the “Pike Street whores,” as
does the caller in the voicemail messages; (d) WILSON also referred to Senator Murray
as “sneaker shoes Murray,” a phrase that also was stated on some of the voicemail
messages; and (€) WILSON made the following remarks, which are similar to the rhetoric
in many of the voicemail messages: “They need to be strung up, and I mean put [in] the
gallows. I will take no prisoners. . .. And I don’t care what they think. They want to
come throw me in jail, they can go ahead and do that. That’s fine.”

During the conversation with S/A Cote, WILSON also discussed the fact that he
possessed, and regularly carried, a firearm. Specifically, WILSON stated:

Ido pack, and I will not blink [] when I’'m confronted, and that is a

guarantee. It’s not a threat, it’s a guarantee. . .. And I work in a

neighborhood where I have to pack. ... ButIpacka.38 and I —If

somebody says, I will not blink. . . . Cops only minutes away, but then

seconds count. . .. That’s how come I pack a firearm.

My investigation has confirmed that WILSON has been issued a valid concealed weapons
permit, and that he has a .38 caliber Smith & Wesson revolver registered to him.

I

I
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CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, there exists probable cause to believe that CHARLES
ALAN WILSON committed the offense of Threatening a Federal Official, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 115(a)(1)(B) and (b)(4).

Lt W -Woridbur oy

CAROLYN W. WOODBURY, Specj4l Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Based on the Complaint and Affidavit sworn to before me, and subscribed in my
presence, the Court hereby finds that there is probable cause to believe that the defendant
committed the offense set forth in the Complaint.

Dated this 5 "Bay of April, 2010.

S, 7 Sl

S P. DONOHUE
fted States Magistrate Judge

U.S. Attorney’s Office
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT &
for the
Western District of Washington

AO 442 (Rev. 01/09) Armest Warrant r‘*g%%:ﬁ:w
L 5

United States of America

v. )
g Case No. M :l /o ',{{
CHARLES ALAN WILSON )
Defendant )
ARREST WARRANT
To: Any authorized law enforcement officer

YOU ARE COMMANDED to arrest and bring before a United States magistrate judge without unnecessary delay

(name of person to be arrested) CHARLES ALAN WILSON
who is accused of an offense or violation based on the following document filed with the court:

3 Indictment O Superseding Indictment {0 Information 3 Superseding Information o Complaint
3 Probation Violation Petition (3 Supervised Release Violation Petition (O Violation Notice (3 Order of the Court

This offense is briefly described as follows:
Threatening a Federal Official, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 115(a)(1)(B) and (b)(4)

Date: _04/05/2010 /QZ;M P; M

Issuing officer’s signature

City and state: _ Seattle, Washington James P. Donohue
Printed name and title

Return

This warrant was received on (date) , and the person was arrested on (date)
at (city and state)

Date:

Arresting officer’s signature

Printed name and title




AO 442 (Rev. 01/09) Arrest Warrant (Page 2)

This second page contains personal identifiers provided for law-enforcement use only
and therefore should not be filed in court with the executed warrant unless under seal.

(Not for Public Disclosure)

Name of defendant/offender: CHARLES ALAN WILSON

Known aliases:

Last known residence: 804 W. Barlett Avenue, Selah, Washington 98942

Prior addresses to which defendant/offender may still have ties:

Last known employment: N/A

Last known telephone numbers: (509) 697-6970

Place of birth:

Date of birth: 04/22/1946

Social Security number: 536-42-4737 »
Height: 5% Weight: _1551bs
Sex; _male Race: caucasian
Hair: red Eyes: blue

Scars, tattoos, other distinguishing marks:

History of violence, weapons, drug use:

Known family, friends, and other associates (name, relation, address, phone number):

FBI number: 399376510

Complete description of auto:

Investigative agency and address: FBI, Seattle Field Office

Name and telephone numbers (office and cell) of pretrial services or probation officer (if applicable):

Date of last contact with pretrial services or probation officer (if applicable):




